ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 8, 2006
2:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE RESOURCES

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Chair
Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair

HOUSE RESOURCES

Representati ve Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Representative Kurt O son
Representative Harry Crawford

VEMBERS ABSENT
SENATE RESOURCES

Senat or Ben Stevens
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senator Bert Stednan
Senator Kim Elton
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

HOUSE RESOURCES
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanmuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Ji m El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Mary Kapsner
COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON: The Al aska M ni ng Associ ation
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -1- February 8, 2006



W TNESS REG STER

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of mning conpanies in
Al aska.

JI M CALVIN, Econom c Anal yst

McDowel | G oup

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented economic study funded by the
Al aska M ners Associ ati on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R THOVAS WAGONER called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Resources Standing Committees to order at 2:10:37 PM
Senat or Wagoner and Representatives O son, Ranras and Crawford
were present at the call to order. Senator Seekins arrived
while the nmeeting was in progress.

PRESENTATI ON: The Al aska M ni ng Associ ati on

CHAI R WAGONER announced that the conmittee would now hear a
presentation fromthe Al aska M ning Association.

2:11:20 PM

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Al aska Mners Association,
said the mning industry is at a unique tine in history wth
preci ous and base netal prices being at their highest in recent
hi story. He said that in 2006 exploration will be extensive.
He said the Alaska State Legislature has created a positive
climate for resource developnent in Al aska, and "we are very

appreciative of that." He said he will speak about current and
future mnes in Al aska. He said the Alaska Mners Association
has contracted with the MDowell Goup to do an economc

anal ysis. Several mne representatives introduced thenselves in
t he audi ence.

2:15: 00 PM
MR BORELL referred to the Usibelli Coal Mne and said Al aska's

coal has a low sulfur content, and that enissions from coal
plants nationwi de are declining in spite of increased activity.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 2- February 8, 2006



He said the denographics of the people who work at the mne site

are extrenely interesting. He noted that 27 percent of the
enpl oyees of the Usibelli coal mne are either second or third
generation coal mners. M. Borell said the conpany produces 95
jobs and contributes to other industry jobs, like railroad and

power plant jobs. He added that safety is Usibelli's nunber one
priority.

2:17: 00 PM

MR. BORELL said that the Kennecott G eens Creek M ning Conpany
is a joint venture, and it is the largest private enployer in
Sout heast Al aska. He said the mne has several years of
reserve, but it is spending about $4.2 mllion in exploration
He said the nmine was certified in the Environnental Managenent
System which is difficult to attain.

2:19:12 PM

MR. BORELL pointed out that NANA Regi onal Corporation owns the
Red Dog M ne and Teck Cominco is the operator. The Red Dog M ne
is the largest zinc concentrate producer in the world. He noted
that 30 years of reserve remain at the project site, and 50 to

60 percent of enployees are NANA sharehol ders. He showed a
picture of a lightering vessel. NANA al so receives royalties
he added.

2:21:15 PM

MR. BORELL said the Fort Knox M ne in Fairbanks enploys over 440
peopl e. He noted that the safety record is good; the mne has
wor ked over 1 mllion worker hours without a l|ost-tine accident.
He said the mne's reservoir has a healthy population of
grayling and burbot, and when the mne is done, the state wl
own the | ake and fishing will be all owed.

2:23:12 PM

MR. BORELL infornmed the conmttees that the construction of the
Pogo Mne is alnbst conplete, with the first gold pour expected
within a few days. He showed a picture of the first production
st ope. He said the mll is state-of-the-art and the pernmanent
wor kforce is expected to be 238 at full production. He said al
of the people being hired from Al aska have already been found
There is a worldw de shortage of experienced underground m ners,
he not ed.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 3- February 8, 2006



2:26: 05 PM

MR. BORELL said that the Kensington Gold Mne is expected to
begin in 2007, producing 100,000 ounces of gold per year for at
| east 10 years. The annual payroll, including benefits wll be
$16 mllion. He said there is a mne training course occurring
now, wth 25 attendees. He said 15 of +the trainees are
shar ehol ders of GCol dbelt, Kake, or Kl ukwan. The mne is not
visible from Berner's Bay, he stated. The conpany has received
many environnmental awards, and its notto is "producing and
protection,” he noted.

2:28: 06 PM

MR. BORELL related that the N xon Forks Mning Project near
McG ath shut down because of |ow netal prices. He said trucks
will go underground to get the ore, and operations will begin in
the sumer of 2006 with 58 full-tinme jobs. He stated that the
conpany has a reclamation bond in place of $3.5 nmillion. The
mne life is two to three years and it does not lend itself to
devel oping a large reserve. There is a significant anmount of
gold that is still in the tailings that will be reprocessed, he
not ed.

2:30: 08 PM

MR. BORELL inforned the commttees the Rock Creek Project in
Nonme is a conventional open pit mne that has been extensively
m ned. There will be production at two sites, he said, and one
of those is eight mles from None. He said it has the first
road in the roads-to-resources program which nade possible the
ability to bring ore fromBig Hurrah. There will be 7,000 tons
mlled per day with a mne life of four to five years. He said
the power will be provided by Nonme Uilities. He said the m ne

has al ready purchased equi pnent, and there will be 135 new j obs,
which is an unheard of opportunity in that area. He said there
will not be a canp, so workers will have to drive to work.
2:33:26 PM

MR. BORELL explained that the Chulitna Coal Project is |ocated
on the Kenai Peninsula, west of Anchorage, Al aska. He said two
i ndi vi dual s have been investing in it since 1978, and he showed

a mp of its |l|ocation. He explained that there wll be a
conveyer belt to carry the coal down, and there wll be a road
along side it, but it is unknown which one will be used. He

said it is over a mle into Cook Inlet to get to deep water.

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 4- February 8, 2006



There is a 300 mllion ton mne-able deposit in logical mning
unit one and there is a possible additional area. He said the
total investment is projected to be $350 to $400 million, the
earliest start date is 2007 and it wll enploy 350 people.
Vessels will have a 60-foot draft to nmake it econom cal to haul
coal , he added.

2:35: 51 PM

MR. BORELL turned to the Donlin Creek Project, which is |ocated
on Calista Native Corporation |land and run by Placer Done that
was recently taken over by Barrick Cold. The conbi ned conpany
will have 26 mnes worldw de. He said the 2006 field season is
moving forward rapidly, but in 2005 111 Kuskokwi m area residents
worked at the mine site. He noted that the mne has ongoing
wi nd power studi es. He related that the conmpany is doing a
feasibility study, and there wll be twce the anount of
drilling in 2006 as in 2005.

2: 38: 08 PM

MR. BORELL showed "an extrenely inportant slide" show ng |oca
sharehol ders as supervisors who work at the Donlin Creek
Project, including a geologist, equipnent operator, and a
war ehousenan.

2:39: 03 PM

MR. BORELL then informed the commttees that Northern Dynasty
Mnerals Ltd. (NDMhas placed its permtting on hold for a year
in order to bring in larger drills to the Pebble M ne because it
has di scovered significant findings to the east of the deposit.
New drills can go down 6,000 feet, he noted. He said they need
to understand the eastern zone, and there wll| be additional
training for bear guards and drill hel pers. He said there are
schol arship prograns that were donated by Northern Dynasty. "W
need m ning engi neers |ike never before," he stated.

MR, BORELL said the Al aska Native Science Engineering Program a
program with which NDM worked, just received a national award
The conpany will hire many Al askans, he opined. In 2005 there
were 609 enpl oyees of which 75 percent were Al askans.

2:42: 26 PM

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 5- February 8, 2006



MR. BORELL distributed a report by the MDowell Goup hired by
the Alaska Mners Association to review the econom c inpacts of
Al aska's mning industry.

2:43: 38 PM

JIM CALVIN, Econom c Analyst, MDowell G oup, explained that the
McDowell Goup is a research and consulting business that is
well known in the visitor and commercial fishing industries. He
said the conpany has a broad perspective on Al aska's econony,
but this is the conpany's first effort at |ooking at statew de
econoni ¢ i npacts.

2:45: 52 PM

MR. CALVIN said the report considered the mning industry to be
conposed of many activities, including big mnes; dozens and
dozens of smal | -scal e and medi um scal e pl acer m ni ng
operations;" and small sand, rock and gravel quarrying

activities in nearly every conmunity in the state. He said the
research focused on 2004 when mning conpanies spent over $70
mllion on exploration projects in Alaska and $200 million on
m ne devel opnent. The economic inpact was 2,900 annual jobs
with a payroll of $194 mlli on.

2:48:11 PM

MR. CALVIN highlighted that there are over 5,100 jobs associ ated
with the industry. However, it's not on the sane scale of oi
and gas, fishing, tourism or state governnent in ternms of its
overall economc inpact to the state, he added. He said it is
nore interesting to look at the |ocal inpacts. For instance,
the average annual salary is $70,000 for Al aska workers in netal
m nes, and they are year round jobs. Over 80 percent of people
enployed in mning are Al aska residents. He added that during
the construction phase of the Pogo Mne the enployees were
nostly Al aska residents. Many mining industry jobs occur in
rural Alaska where there are very few private sector
opportunities.

2:50:43 PM

MR. CALVIN said mning jobs have becone an inportant part in the
econony in certain boroughs, especially the Red Dog and Fort

Knox M nes. In fact, the Geens Creek Mne is the |[argest
private sector enployer in Juneau and it's a critical source of
private sector jobs. The mning industry is a key source of

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 6- February 8, 2006



income for governnments around Al aska, he noted. He said three
gquarters the borough's total general fund came from the Red Dog
Mne |ast year. Fort Knox is the second |argest property
taxpayer in the Fairbanks North Star Borough. He listed other
mnes that were inportant sources of revenue to |oca
gover nnent s.

2:53: 26 PM

MR. CALVIN informed the commttees that the mning industry
generated $16 nmillion in state governnment receipts in 2004 from
mning license taxes and various rents and royalties. He noted
that these figures are from 2004 when netal prices were just
beginning to recover, so he said he expects the figures to be
hi gher in follow ng years. He spoke of infrastructure benefits
of the mning industry, including the A aska Railroad. He noted
that electric power rates are |lower for Fairbanks residents
because of the use of power by m ning.

2:55: 44 PM

MR CALVIN related that a power |ine extension was just
conpleted to Geens Creek and that line can be used to provide
power to Hoonah. He added that mning provides opportunities to
Al aska Natives, including the NANA Regional Corporation. He

said the Red Dog Mne has paid about $100 mllion since the
1980s and it has enployed 1,000 different NANA sharehol ders.

2:57:52 PM

MR. CALVIN pointed out that there are inportant |inkages between
the mning industry and Native interest in terns of business
rel ati onshi ps and opportunities. In fact, 120 of the 480 or so
Red Dog M ne enpl oyees are actually enployees of subsidiaries of
NANA Regi onal Cor por at i on. Simlarly, Pl acer Donme, the
developer of the Donlin Creek project, has entered into
exploration and mning |ease agreenents wth Calista and
Kuskokw n Cor porati ons. Therefore, he opined that the mning
industry is doing very good things for the Native interests in
Al aska. In closing, M. Calvin rem nded the commttee that the
m ning industry provides high paying jobs, year round jobs, jobs
for rural resi dents, and training opportunities that are

transferrable throughout the state and other industries.
Furthernore, the mning industry 1is a capital i ntensi ve
busi ness, which neans that | ocal governnments can enjoy
significant benefits from property tax revenues. In fact, the

property tax and sales tax revenues generated from the mning

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES -7- February 8, 2006



industry and its enployees far exceed any |ocal governnent
expenditure on services to the mne or the mne-related
popul ati on. Furthernore, the mning industry helps build and
support infrastructure that benefits present and future
Al askans. M. Calvin opined that the mning industry provides a
nearly ideal package of economc benefits and it's an industry
that the state can nurture because it has roomto grow.

3:03:21 PM

CHAI R WAGONER rel ayed that he is very happy to see the condensed
version of the MDowell G oup research. He said people are
interested in this issue.

SENATOR SEEKI NS expressed interest in the political process of
the opposition to the Pebble Mne, and he asked about the
envi ronnent al chal |l enges and how they are being addressed.

MR. BORELL said he looks critically at conmpanies that conme into
Al aska because he does not want them to make a ness. He said
NDM picked the best individuals to do environmental analyses.
He said the area was selected by the State of Alaska for its

m neral values long before mnerals were ever found. He said
NDM rai sed significant anounts of noney to drill in the area
If the project becones a mne, the followng would occur: an
additional year of drilling, reevaluation of the mne plan, and
a three-year environnental inpact statenent process with all the
state and federal agencies. If, after the aforenentioned, the
mne is permttable, the mne will have 1,000 jobs for 50-100

years in a place where there are few jobs. The af orenmenti oned
is a huge potential benefit to the local communities, he opined.

3:09:54 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS opined that the permtting process is very
cautious in evaluating risks, and he asked if there is value in
having the legislature perform a review to ensure that these
agencies are adequately protecting the interests of the people
of Alaska. He further asked if the [state agencies] are staffed
wel | enough to do the aforenentioned wthout additional
| egi sl ative oversight.

MR. BORELL replied yes, adding that the state agencies have
extrenely conpetent people. In fact, many of them have | ust
gone through the permtting process for the Pogo M ne. He
suggested that the legislature has appropriately defined |and
pl anning for the state. He explained that the |land plans aren't

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 8- February 8, 2006



based on a project; the environnmental inpact statenment (EIS) is

the project permt approach. The overall intent of the |and
plan is to establish the ground rules upon which a conpany can
make | ong-term deci sions. M. Borell opined that extrene is

uncertainty created when the state comes back in to do
additional |and planning once a conpany has a project that it
wants to nove forward for permtting. Furthernore, there has
been nuch discussion [and effort] to streanline permtting.
Addi ng an additional planning process in the mddle of a project
isn't appropriate [in streamining]. M. Borell opined that the
current system works wel .

SENATOR SEEKINS suggested that sonetinmes sinple opposition to

and desire to kill a project is expressed as the need to study
it and obtain nore information on it. Therefore, Senator
Seekins expressed <concern that if there aren't adequate

mechani sns and staff in place, then that should be addressed
rat her than studying a project to death.

3:14: 18 PM

CHAI R WAGONER poi nted out that the federal government is working
on new mne safety regulations, and inquired as to the inpact
that will have on future Al aska m ning.

MR. BORELL said that he has had a glinpse of a few of the things
bei ng done by the federal governnent. Al t hough there are sone
things that can be inproved upon, he related his understanding
that the global positioning satellite technology that could
provi de know edge as to the location of people doesn't exist.
M. Borell acknowl edged that any fatalities are too many, but he
al so pointed out that the mning industry is far safer than nost
other industries, including the construction industry. He
opined that the current |aws now are extrenely stringent and the
inspectors who review the mnmne sights already have much
aut hority.

3:17: 07 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the conmttees, the joint

neeting of the House and Senate Resources Standing Commttees
was adjourned at 3:17:19 PM

JT. S/H RES COW TTEES - 9- February 8, 2006



